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INTRODUCTION

For several years, Defendants Secretary of the Interior Gale Norton and the U.S. Fish and
Wildlife Service (collectively "FWS") have failed to comply with their mandatory duty to timely
respond to petitions to list imperiled species under the Endangered Species Act (ESA), including
the five petitions at issue in this lawsuit. Section 4(b)(3) of the ESA requires FWS to make an
initial finding on a citizen listing petition within 90 days "to the maximum extent practicable,"
but it no event may FWS take longer than 12 months. 16 U.S.C. § 1533(b)(3). The agency's
repeated failure to comply with these deadlines has spawned multiple lawsuits. See, e.g.,

Biodiversity Legal Foundation v. Badgley, 309 F.3d 1166, 1173 (9th Cir. 2002) (listing cases).

Plaintiffs submit that FWS's pattern and practice of violating section 4(b)(3) of the ESA is based
on its desire to avoid listing imperiled species through the citizen petition process. Indeed, Judge
Robertson recognized that FWS is choosing "to ignore citizens petitions, precisely in order to
avoid starting the 12-month finding clock" that applies upon receiving an ESA listing petitibn.

Biodiversity Legal Found'n v. Babbitt, 63 F.Supp.2d 31, 33 (D.D.C. 1999)

In the Tenth and Eleventh Claim for Relief, Plaintiffs challenge FWS's application of this
pattern and practice to Plaintiffs' petitions to list the Dakota skipper, Gunnison prairie dog, Black
Hills mountainsnail, Uinta mountainsnail, and the Parachute penstemon. Second Amended
Complaint (SAC) 11 134-143. Based on this pattern and practice, FWS has not made the
required initial finding on these petitions despite the fact they were received over 12 months ago.
As aresult, Plaintiffs seek (1) declaratory relief that this pattern and practice violates the ESA
deadline for 90-day findings and Administrative Procedure Act (APA) standards, and (2)
injunctive relief that enjoins FWS's continued application of this pattern and practice to
Plaintiffs' petitions.

In its Motion, FWS seeks to dismiss Plaintiffs' two "pattern and practice" claims and
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certain allegations on jurisdictional grounds.! The Court should deny this Motion because
subject matter jurisdiction for these claims is properly derived from the ESA or, alternatively, the
APA. The ESA's citizen suit provision provides jurisdiction because FWS's pattern and practice
fails to comply with mandatory ESA section 4 deadlines upon receipt of a listing petition. 16
U.S.C. § 1540(g)(1)(C). Further, to the extent Plaintiffs must challenge "final agency action"
under the ESA's citizen suit provision or the APA, the Court has jurisdiction because FWS's
pattern and practice has been applied to the five specific listing petitions, which are the subject of

this lawsuit.

LEGAL BACKGROUND

The ESA is a federal statute that "provide[s] a means whereby the ecosystems upon
which endangered species and threatened species depend may be conserved." 16 U.S.C. §
1531(b). The purpose of the ESA is twofold: (1) to prevent the extinction of animals and plants;
and (2) to provide for the recovery of these critically-imperiled species. See id. § 1531. To
achieve these purposes, the ESA provides several procedural and substantive protections for
listed species. Id. § 1533(a)(3) (designate critical habitat), § 1533(f) (prepare and implement
recovery plans), § 1536(2)(2) (ensure federal actions do not lead to extinction), and §
1538(a)(1)(B) (prohibit actions that "harm" species).

Because the ESA does not protect a species until it is listed, the "listing process" is the
essential first step to species protection and recovery. See 16 U.S.C. § 1533. A species is
"endangered" if it "is in danger of extinction throughout all or a significant portion of its range."

Id. § 1532(6) (emphasis added). A species is "threatened" if it "is likely to become an

! Oddly, FWS's Motion also seeks td dismiss factual allegations in Plaintiffs' Fourth and

Seventh Claims, although not the claims themselves. The Fourth and Seventh Claims simply
allege that FWS's pattern and practice was unlawfully applied to two of Plaintiffs' listing
petitions and provide another reason why Plaintiffs are entitled to judgment on these claims.
FWS does not cite any authority, nor is there any, that a motion to dismiss for lack of jurisdiction
can be used as a vehicle to strike factual allegations from a complaint.
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endangered species within the foreseeable future throughout all or a significant portion of its
range." Id. § 1532(20). Based on these definitions, Congress intended that FWS list species and
"take preventative measures before a species is conclusively headed for extinction." Defenders of

Wildlife v. Babbitt, 958 F.Supp. 670, 679-80 (D.D.C. 1997). FWS must list a species if, based

on the "best available scientific and commercial information," "any one or a combination" of

certain enumerated factors warrant ESA listing. 16 U.S.C. § 1533(a)(1); § 1533(b)(1)(A);

Carlton v. Babbitt, 900 F.Supp. 526, 530 (D.D.C. 1995). Atno point in the ESA listing process
may FWS consider political and economic factors. 16 U.S.C. § 1533(b)(1)(A); Homebuilders
Ass'n of Northern California v. U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, 258 F.Supp. 2d 1197, 1225-26

(E.D. Cal. 2003).

There are two ways to list species. First, FWS may initiate a listing. In this scenario,
FWS will publish in the Federal Register a Proposed Rule to list a species, which must then be
finalized a year later. Id. § 1533(b)(5) & (6). Absent a Proposed Rule, FWS identifies the
imperiled species as a "candidate" for listing, which means the species deserves protection but
must wait until FWS acts on other higher priority species that require more immediate attention.
50 C.F.R. § 424.15(b).2 Thefe is no specific timeframe by which FWS must act to protect
candidate species. Id. § 424.15(b). Candidate species receive none of the protections afforded
listed species. Id.

The second method for ESA listing involves a citizen preparing and submitting a petition
to FWS. 16 U.S.C. § 1533(b)(3)(A); 50 C.F.R. § 424.14(a). The petition must contain detailed
information and provide documentation regarding the status of the species and the threats to its
survival. 50 C.F.R. § 424.14. Section 4 of the ESA establishes a detailed review process that

requires FWS to make two findings on a petition within 12 months of receipt. 16 U.S.C. §

2 A list of candidate species is periodically published in the Federal Register in the

Candidate Notice of Review that includes the priority number for each candidate species. 50
C.F.R. § 424.15(b); see, e.g, 66 Fed. Reg. 54808 (Oct. 30, 2001); 67 Fed. Reg. 40657 (June 13,

2002); 69 Fed. Reg. 24876 (May 4, 2004),
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1533(b)(3). In the initial finding, FWS must determine whether the petition contains "substantial
scientific or commercial information indicating that the petitioned action may be warranted." Id.
§ 1533(b)(3)(A); 50 C.F.R. § 424.14(b)(1). FWS must render this initial finding "within 90
days" of receipt, to the maximum extent practicable, which is commonly referred to as the "90-
day finding." 16 U.S.C. § 1533(b)(3)(A). If the petition presents substantial information, FWS
must publish a second finding in the Federal Register as to whether listing is warranted, not
warranted, or warranted but temporarily precluded by other higher priority listing actions. Id. §
1533(b)(3)(B); 50 C.F.R. § 424.14(b)(3). This second petition finding is due within 12 months
of receipt without exception. 16 U.S.C. § 1533(b)(3)(B).

RELEVANT FACTUAL BACKGROUND

Plaintiffs have recently submitted fully-documented ESA petitions to list five species due
to their imperiled status.

The Dakota Skipper is a small to medium-sized butterfly that is native to tallgrass and
mixed grass prairie habitats in the northern Great Plains. The skipper is known as an indicator
species for a healthy prairie ecosystem. The conversion of prairie grasslands for agriculture,
pesticide and herbicide application, and excessive livestock grazing threaten the skipper. The
skipper has lost much of its former range and only 150 populations remain. In 1975, FWS
designated the skipper a candidate species (40 Fed. Reg. 12,691) and it has since remained on
that list without further listing action. As a result, Plaintiffs submitted a petition to list the
Dakota Skipper on May 6, 2003. |

The Gunnison prairie dog inhabits high desert and mountainous grasslands in limited
parts of New Mexico, Arizona, Colorado, and Utah and has disappeared from more than 90% of
its former range. This species of prairie dog is a keystone species that serves as prey fora
variety of other animals. Researchers have concluded that the Gunnison prairie dog's

communication system is the most complex of any non-human animal ever studied. Shooting,
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poisoning, sylvatic plague, and habitat destruction threaten this species continued existence. On

February 23, 2004, Plaintiffs submitted a petition to list the Gunnison prairie dog. /—\

The Black Hills mountainsnail is a critically imperiled species of land snail that is found
only in the forests of the Black Hills, an isolated mountain range located in western South
Dakota and northeastern Wyoming. Logging, livestock grazing, mining, and road construction
threaten this species. The specialized habitat requirements of the Blapk Hills mountainsnail
make it an excellent indicator of the health of the Black Hills forest. Only thirty-two populations
remain. Plaintiffs submitted a petition to list the Black Hills mountainsnail on September 34,
2003.

There is only one remaining population of the Uinta mountainsnail, found on less than
one acre in northeastern Utah in the Ashley National Forest. The Uinta mountainsnail is
extremely vulnerable to local, small-scale weather and other natural events; a single fire, severe
storm, unusually hard winter, or prolonged drought in this one habitat area could completely
eliminate ithe species. Livestock grazing and logging also threatens the Uinta mountainsnail's
remaining habitat. Plaintiffs submitted a petition to list the Uinta mountainsnail on August 21,
2001.

The Parachute penstemon is among the rarest plants in North America and exists in only
five locations along cliffs of the Roan Plateau in Garfield County, Colorado. Fewer than 750
plants remain, covering an area of less than 200 acres. Energy exploration and extraction
threaten the Parachute penstemon. The Parachute penstemon is a long-lived species that is slow
to reach sexual maturity and has low reproductive rates; as a result, this plant especially
susceptible to extinction and has greater difficulty recovering from a population decline. FWS
designated it a candidate species in 1990 (55 Fed. Reg. 6184, 6217), but has not acted on the
species since then. As a result, Plaintiffs submitted a petition to list the Parachute penstemon on

March 15, 2004.
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To date, FWS has not responded to these five petitions.
In addition to these five petitions, FWS has repeatedly ignored citizen petitions for ESA

listing. As a result, petitioners have filed multiple lawsuits in recent years. See, e.g., Center for

Native Ecosystems v. Norton, Civ. No. 05-RB-188 (D.Colo. 2005) (Douglas County pocket

gopher); Center for Biological Diversity v. Norton, Case No. 1:04-CV-2553 (N.D. Ga. 2004) K

(Agave eggersiana and Solanum conocarpum -- two plants); Institute for Wildlife Protection v.

Norton, 337 F.Supp.2d 1223 (W.D. Wash. 2004) (western gray squirrel); Center for Biological

Diversity v. Norton, Civ. No. 03-473-TUC-FRZ (D.Az. 2003) (Gentry indigo bush and porter

feathergrass -- two plants); Center for Native Ecosystems v. Norton, Civ. No. 03-M-2300

(D.Colo. 2003) (Graham's penstemon); Defenders of Wildlife v. Norton, No. CV 02-165-M-

DVM (D. Mont. 2002) (wolverine); Biodiversity Legal Foundation v. Badgley, 309 F.3d 1166

(9th Cir. 2002) (Spalding's catchfly, mountain yellow-legged frog, redband trout, and yellow- .
billed cuckoo); Biodiversity Legal Foundation v. Babbitt, 63 F.Supp.2d 31, 34 (D.D.C. 1999)

(Baird's sparrow); Rosmarino v. Babbitt, Case No. 1:99¢v00322-LFO (D.D.C. 1999) (prairie

dog); Restore the North Woods v. Babbitt, Case No. 97-10759-MLW (D.Mass. 1997) (Harlequin
duck); Biodiversity Legal Found. v. Babbitt, Case No. 95-M-601 (D. Colo. 1996) (western

boreal toad); Biodiversity Legal Found. v. Babbitt, Case No. 95-B-2509 (D. Colo. 1996)

(Fisher); Biodiversity Legal Found. v. Babbitt, Case No. 96-B-2591 (D. Colo. 1996) (lesser

prairie chicken); Biodiversity Legal Found. v. Babbitt, Case No. 95-N-1815 (D. Colo. 1995)

(Kootneai river Population of the Interior Redband Trout).
ARGUMENT
Plaintiffs assert that jurisdiction for their two "pattern and practice” claims -- the Tenth
and Eleventh Claims for Relief — is based on the ESA's citizens suit provision. See SAC { 15.
Because FWS's pattern and practice violates mandatory ESA deadlines, the ESA provides

jurisdiction over these claims. To the extent the ESA citizen suit provision requires final agency
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action or jurisdiction must be based on the APA, the Court has jurisdiction over the two claims
challenging FWS's illegal pattern and practice because it has been applied to the five listing

petitions Plaintiffs have submitted to FWS.

I. JURISDICTION FOR PLAINTIFFS' TENTH AND ELEVENTH CLAIM LIES UNDER
THE ESA CITIZEN SUIT PROVISION

The ESA's citizen suit provision provides courts with jurisdiction over claims alleging

* FWS violated section 4 mandatory duties. Section 11(g)(1)(C) provides:

Any person may commence a civil suit on his own behalf . . . against the Secretary [of
the Interior] where there is alleged a failure of the Secretary to perform any act or duty
under section 4 which is not discretionary with the Secretary.

16 U.S.C. § 1540(g)(1)(C). In these cases, "district courts shall have jurisdiction, without regard
to the amount in controversy or the citizenship of the parties, to enforce any such provision or
regulation, or to order the Secretary to perform such act or duty, as the case may be." Id. §
1540(g)(1). Accordingly, Plaintiffs may sue FWS under section 11(g)(1)(C) of the ESA's citizen

suit provision when the agency ignores mandatory section 4 statutory deadlines upon receiving a

listing petition. See Bennett v. Spear, 520 U.S. 154, 172 (1997) ("It is rudimentary administrative
law that discretion as to the substance of the ultimate decision does not confer discretion to

ignore the required procedures of decisionmaking").

A. Section 4(b) Imposes A Mandatory Deadline On FWS

In the Tenth and Eleventh Claims, Plaintiffs allege FWS's pattern and practice violates an
ESA non-discretionary deadline to make timely initial petition findings.®> Section 4(b)(3)(A) of
the ESA imposes a 90-day deadline on FWS, although the 90-day deadline may be extended if

3 The duty to make an initial finding on a citizen's petition is also mandatory. Section

4(b)(3)(A) states "[t]he Secretary shall make a finding as to whether the petition presents
substantial . . . information indicating that the petitioned action may be warranted.” 16 U.S.C. §
1533(b)(3)(A). The Supreme Court has held that the use of the word "shall" in statutory
language indicates Congress' intent to impose a mandatory duty to take action. Pierce v,
Underwood, 487 U.S. 552, 569-70 (1988). Courts have concluded that "shall" as used without
qualification in section 4 of the ESA, imposes a mandatory, nondiscretionary obligation. See,
e.g., Environmental Defense Ctr. v. Babbitt, 73 F.3d 867, 871 (9th Cir. 1995); Forest Guardians
v. Babbitt, 174 F.3d 1178, 1186 (10th Cir. 1999).
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FWS demonstrates impracticability. 16 U.S.C. § 1533(b)(3)(A). However, FWS's ability to
delay the timing of an initial finding is capped at 12 months because section 4(b)(3)(B) requires
FWS to render a second finding within 12 months of petition receipt. Id. § 1533(b)(3)(B). The
ESA grants FWS no leeway to extend this second deadline even if FWS lawfully delays the
initial petition finding. Id.; see Biodiversity Legal Foundation v. Babbitt, 63 F.Supp.2d 31, 34

(D.D.C. 1999) (Judge Robertson held that "the 12 month period runs from the receipt of the

petition, not from the preliminary finding"); Oregon Natural Resources Council v. Kantor, 99

F.3d 334, 338 (9th Cir. 1996) ("The deadlines for determining whether action on a petition is
warranted and for publishing a proposed regulation are expressly tied to the filing of the
petition"). Congress could have linked the deadline for this second finding to the date of the

initial petition finding, and not petition receipt -- but chose not to. See Russello v. U.S., 464 U.S.

16,23 (1983) (it is generally presumed that Congress acts intentionally where it includes
disparate language in differeht sections within a statute). Accordingly, section 4(b)(3) of the
ESA imposes a mandatory deadline on FWS to complete the initial petition finding no later than
12 months after petition receipt.

Indeed, courts have agreed that because the deadline for the second petition finding is
not flexible, ESA section 4(b)(3)(A) means that the finding must be made within 90 days unless
impracticable, 1n which case FWS must render the initial finding within 12 months of petition

receipt. Biodiversity Legal Foundation v. Badgley, 309 F.3d 1166, 1173 (9th Cir. 2002); id. at

1171 ("the Service has discretion to extend the initial determination beyond ninety days;

however, the Service is required to make a final determination on positive petitions within

twelve months of receipt™); American Lands Alliance v. Norton, 242 F. Supp. 2d 1, 8 n. 7
(D.D.C. 2003) (referencing many missed ESA deadline cases). In Badgley, the court rejected
FWS's argument that it can delay the initial finding "indefinitely," reasoning that "[t]he only

way to give effect to both deadline provisions is to apply the twelve-month deadline to both the
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initial and final determinations." Id. at 1174. Similarly, a district court in the Southern District
of California correctly noted that "the only internally consistent interpretation of the plain
language of the 90-day finding and the 12-month is that Congress intended to give some room in
the initial processing of the [petitions], but intended to cap that discretion by imposing a 12-

month requirement." Southwest Center v. Babbitt, Civ. No. 98-1785-1, Slip Op. at 9 (S.D. Cal.

Oct. 28, 1999) (Exhibit 1) ("The discretion inherent in the 90-day finding must be curtailed to
accord with the ultimate time-limit imbosed by the 12-month finding").

The ESA's legislative history provides additional proof that Congress mandated a timely
initial petition finding. Prior to the 1982 Amendments to section 4 of the ESA, FWS enjoyed,
and often took advantage of, wide discretion to indefinitely delay responding to a citizen listing
ESA petition. House Report No. 567, 97th Cong., 2d Sess. 10, reprinted in 1982 U.S.C.C.A.N.
2807,2811. Congressional amendments to section 4, however, were principally intended to
"replace the Secretary's discretion with mandatory, non-discretionary duties.” H.R. Conf. Rep.
No. 835, 97th Cong., 2nd Sess., reprinted in, 1982 U.S.C.C.AN. 2860, 2861-62. Congress

explained:

[Ulnder current law [pre-1982], if a petition presents substantial
evidence warranting a review of the status of a species, the Secretary is
to undertake such a review. However, the statute imposes no deadlines
within which such review is to be completed. In practice such status
reviews have often continued indefinitely, sometimes for many years.

Id. at 2861-62 (emphasis added).

B. The ESA Citizen Suit Provision Provides Jurisdiction For Plaintiffs’ Challenge To FWS's
Pattern And Practice Of Violating Section 4(b)(3)'s Mandatory Duties

As the plain language of the statute, case law and the legislative history make clear, FWS
has a mandatory duty to complete the initial finding within 12 months. Because Plaintiffs’ Tenth
and Eleventh Claims allege that FWS adopted a pattern and practice that violates this section

4(b)(3)'s mandatory deadline, the ESA's citizen suit provision provides jurisdiction over

Plaintiffs' Tenth and Eleventh Claims. 16 U.S.C. § 1540(g)(1)(C); Bennett, 520 U.S. at 172
Pls." Opp. to Motion to Dismiss 9 :



("[s]ince it is the omission of these required procedures that petitioners complain.of, their § 1533

claim is reviewable under § 1540(g)(1)(C)"); Butte Environmental Council v. Norton, Civ. No.

$-04-96, Slip Op. at 7 (E.D. Cal. June 2, 2004) (finding pattern and practice claim concerning
violations of section 4 mandatory duties when designating critical habitat gave rise to ESA
citizen suit jurisdiction).4 |

FWS offers several reasons why there is no ESA citizen suit jurisdiction over these
claims, éll of which should be rejected. First, the agency suggests it has "complete discretion" to
not respond to citizens' listing petitions in a timely manner. FWS Motion at 10-11 (describing
" Administrator's [sic] discretionary internal procedures").5 As detailed above, this argument is
specious, as is highlighted by the fact FWS provides no statutory or case law support for its
argument.

Second, FWS claims the ESA citizen suit provision does not authorize pattern and
practice claims. FWS Memo at 10-11. However, this Court has previously ruled that 16 US.C. §
1540(g)(1)(C) provides jurisdiction when a plaintiff alleges violations of ESA section 4
mandatory duties, including claims that involve challenges to a FWS illegal pattern and practice.

In Fund for Animals v. Norton, in response to the same argument FWS is presenting in this case,

the Court found plaintiffs were alleging violations of mandatory duties in section 4(d) of the
ESA, which concerned the non-discretionary duty to deny ESA permits unless certain criteria are

satisfied. Fund for Animals v. Norton, Civ. No. 01-813 GK, Slip Op. at 13 (D.D.C. March 29,

2002) (Exhibit 2). Because "plaintiffs here have alleged that Defendants are granting permits
without complying with mandatory criteria set forth in the permit regulations . . . [tThey have

therefore identified non-discretionary duties reviewable under § 1540(g)(1)(C)." Id. at 14-15.

4 This Slip Opinion was attached as Exhibit 1 to FWS's Motion to Dismiss. (Dkt. # 37.)

5 Plaintiffs note that FWS mistakenly refers to the Secretary of the Interior as the

" Administrator" in several portions of its brief. FWS Memo at 10, 15. FWS's brief also refers to
Plaintiffs' pattern and practice claims as concerning "permits," not petition findings. FWS Memo
at 15.
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Third, FWS argues "final agency action," a requirement relevant for Jjurisdiction under
the APA, is necessary even for claims based on the ESA's citizen suit provision. FWS Memo at
17-18. This contention is fundamentally wrong. Notably, FWS does not cite the statute for this
proposition. Further, in contrast to the APA, where final agency action is expressly required, the
ESA's citizen suit provision imposes no such requirement for jurisdiction to be present. See 16

U.S.C. § 1540(g)(1); NRDC v. U.S. Dep't. of the Navy, 2002 WL 32095131 *22, n. 13 (C.D.

Cal. Sept. 17, 2002) ("Plaintiffs' ESA claim is not subject to the finality requirement because it is
brought pursuant to ESA's own citizen suit provision, 16 U.S.C. § 1540(g), rather than the
APA").

Moreover, FWS's argument that final agency action is required is based entirely on an
Arizona district court case, which involved a different provision of the ESA's citizen suit

provision -- section 11(g)(1)(A). FWS Memo at 17, citing Defenders of Wildlife v, Flowers,

2003 WL 143270, *2 (D. Az. August 18, 2003). In Flowers, the court considered whether a

pattern and practice claim against the Army Corps of Engineers for ESA section 7(a)(2)
violations could be maintained under section 11(g)(1)(A) of the ESA's citizen suit provision.
2003 WL 143270, *2. Section 11(g)(1)(A) provides jurisdiction over civil suits "to enjoin any
person including the United States and any other governmental instrumentality or agency . ..
who is alleged to be in violation of any provision of this Act or regulation..." 16 U.S.C. §
1540(g)(1)(A). That subsection, however, sets forth different criteria than found in section
11(g)(1)(C), which is the provision applicable to Plaintiffs' Tenth and Eleventh Claims. Further,

the Supreme Court held that 11(g)(1)(A) does not provide jurisdiction for claims against FWS

for violations of mandatory section 4 duties -- section 11(g)(1)(C) does. Bennett, 523 U.S. at
171-74.°

6 FWS notes that in the present case, like in Flowers, the Army Corps did not have an

"informal guideline or policy statement setting forth the alleged pattern, practice and policy."
FWS Memo at 17. To the extent FWS is making a "factual” attack on jurisdiction in their
Motion and this issue is relevant to deciding FWS's Motion, and the existence of the pattern and
PIs." Opp. to Motion to Dismiss 11




In sum, in the present litigation, section 11(g)(1)(C) of the ESA citizen suit provision
provides jurisdiction over Plaintiffs' pattern and practice claims because they involve FWS's

failure to comply with mandatory section 4 deadlines.

II. JURISDICTION OVER PLAINTIFFS' TENTH AND ELEVENTH CLAIMS IS
PRESENT BECAUSE FWS'S PATTERN AND PRACTICE HAS BEEN APPLIED TO
PLAINTIFFS' FIVE LISTING PETITIONS

Even if final agency action is necessary for ESA citizen suit jurisdiction or if Plaintiffs'
Tenth and Eleventh Claims may only be brought under the APA, jurisdiction is present. These
two claims do not present a general challenge to FWS's pattern and practice of not making
petition findings or various other aspects of the ESA listing program, as FWS contends. Rather,
Plaintiffs only challenge FWS's failure to make initial petitions findings in accordance with the
mandatory deadlines of ESA section 4(b)(3). Moreover, Plaintiffs' challenge is tethered to the
specific application of this pattern and practice to the five listing petitions at issue in this case.’
Because FWS's pattern and practice has played a causal role in delaying the mandatory findings
on Plaintiffs' petitions for more than 12 months, Plaintiffs may challenge the lawfulness of the
pattern and practice.-

This Court rejected a similar FWS argument that plaintiffs failed to challenge a final -

agency action when challenging a pattern and practice. In Fund for Animals v. Norton, plaintiffs

had challenge "defendants' policy and practice of granting argali [sheep] import permits." Slip

Op. at 17 (Exhibit 2). In denying a motion to dismiss, the Court reasoned that plaintiffs had

practice is disputed for the purposes of this Motion, Plaintiffs suggest that a stay of FWS's
Motion is appropriate to allow for discovery. See Buicher's Union Local No. 498 v. SDC, 788
F.2d 535, 540 (9th Cir. 1986) ("discovery should ordinarily be granted where pertinent facts
bearing on the question of jurisdiction are controverted or where a more satisfactory showing of
the facts is necessary"); Budde v. Ling-Temco-Vought, 511 F.2d 1033, 1035 (10th Cir. 1975)
("When a defendant moves to dismiss for lack of jurisdiction, either party should be allowed
discovery on the factual issues raised by that motion."); Gould Electronics Inc. v. United States
220 F3d'169, 176 (3rd Cir. 2000); Commodities Export Co. V. United States Customs Service,
888 F2d 431, 436 (6th Cir. 1989). ‘

! FWS claims that agency inaction, such as the failure to respond to an ESA listing
petition, is never final agency action under the APA. FWS Memo at 12. However, the APA
defines agency action to include the failure to act. 5 U.S.C. § 551(13).
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"named five individual permits that have been granted in direct violation of the permit
regulations." Slip Op. at 16. The plaintiffs had also identified "over 100 other permits." Id. The
Court rejected FWS's argumeﬁt, which was based on the Supreme Court decision in Lujan v.
NWF, 497 U.S. 871 (1990), because plaintiffs alleged that each permit was issued in violation of
ESA regulations, were not challenging day-to-day operations of the agency but specific permits,
and the challenge concerned primarily permits that had been issued and not some unknown
future actions. Slip Op. at 20-21. Another court underwent the same analysis, finding it had
Jurisdiction because plaintiffs had challenged a pattern and practice that was applied in a

particular ESA rulemaking process. Butte Environmental Council v. Norton, Slip Op. at 9-10

(application to ESA critical habitat designation for 15 species). For the same reasons, the Court
should deny FWS's current Motion and its reliance on Lujan v. NWF.8

The Ninth Circuit decision in Neighbors of Cuddy Mountain v. Alexander supports the

existence of APA Jurisdiction over Plaintiffs' Tenth and Eleventh Claims as well. Neighbors of

Cuddy Mountain v. Alexander, 303 F.3d 1050, 1066-67 (9th Cir. 2002). In that case, the U.S.
Forest Service argued plaintiffs' claim was challenging forést-wide management and monitoring
practices lacked a specific final agency action. However, the Ninth Circuit held otherwise,
finding a specific connection between the allegedly unlawful practice and a site-specific timber
sale. Id. at 1067. According to the Ninth Circuit, "there must be a relationship between the
lawfulness ofthe site-specific action and the practice challenged.” Id. at 1074, id. ‘at 1068-69

(distinguishing Lujan on this basis). For this reason, the Ninth Circuit also distinguished the

Fifth Circuit's ruling in Sierra Club v. Peterson, 228 F.3d 559 (5th Cir. 2000), a case FWS relies
upon in its Motion (FWS Memo at 16):

The defect to which our sister circuit objected in Peterson was the plaintiffs'
failure to limit their challenge to individual sales, instead using a laundry list of

8 Like Lujan, FWS's reliance on SUWA v. Norton, 124 S.Ct. 2374 (2004) (FWS Memo at
14) is misplaced because Plaintiffs have challenged the agency's application of its illegal pattern
and practice to five specific listing petitions.
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specific sales as mere evidence to support their sweeping argument that the Forest
Service's . . . management of the Texas forests over the last twenty years violates
the NFMA. In confrast, here [plaintiff] challenges only the Grade/Dukes sale and
points to Forest Service practices as evidence that this particular sale is unlawful.
Indeed, the Fifth Circuit specifically recognized that (in cases such as this one)
environmental groups can challenge a specific final agency action [which] has an
actual or immediately threatened effect, even when such a challenge has the effect
of requiring a regulation, a series of regulations, or even a whole program to be
revised by the agency.

Cuddy Mountain, 303 F.3d at 1068-69 (internal quotations and citations omitted).

Moreover, neither the Supreme Court nor any other court has prohibited, as a matter of

law, challenges to agency patterns and practices. As this Court has ruled, "Lujan does not erect a

bar to all claims seeking changes in an agency's program." Fund for Animals v. Norton, Slip Op.
at 19 (Exhibit 2). When an agency engages in a practice of repeatedly making the same unlawful
decision, that "practice is unquestionable subject to judicial review." Slip Op. at 17-18; see, e.g.,

McNary v. Haitian Refugee Center, 498 U.S. 479, 483 (1991) (permitting plaintiffs to pursue "an

action alleging a pattern or practice of procedural due process violations by the Immigration and

Naturalization Service in its administration of the [Special Agricultural Workers] program");

Payne Enterprises v. U.S., 837 F.2d 486 (D.C. Cir. 1988) (informal practice of evaluating FOIA

requests subject to judicial review); Public Citizen v. Dept. of State, 276 F.3d 634 (D.C. Cir.

2002) (challenge to State Department's FOIA policy subject to review); San Juan Audubon

Society v. Veneman, 153 F.Supp.2d 1, 11 (D.D.C. 2001). Indeed, challenges to an agency

pattern and practice may proceed so as long as a plaintiff challenges its application to a particular
agency action. In contrast to Lujan, where the plaintiffs had failed to identify a single agency
action, here, Plaintiffs challenge FWS's illegal pattern and practice as applied to five ESA listing
petitions. Plaintiffs' Tenth and Eleventh Claims may procéed even if judicial "intervention may
ultimately have the effect of requiring . . . a whole 'program’ to be revised by the agency in order
to avoid the unlawful result that the court discerns.” Lujan, 497 U.S. at 894.

Lastly, FWS cites Institute for Wildlife Protection v. Norton for the proposition that a

plaintiff cannot include a pattern and practice claim under the ESA's citizen suit provision or the
Pls.' Opp. to Motion to Dismiss 14 '



APA.FWS Memo at 11,12. That case is readily distinguishable because the Court had already
ordered the requested relief for the one petition that was at issue in the lawsuit and could provide

no additional relief to the plaintiff. Institute for Wildlife Protection v. Norton, 337 F.Supp.2d at

1227, 1228 (noting it had "already granted that relief to plaintiffs by granting summary judgment

on their first claim and by ordering defendants to comply with the statute and review plaintiffs'

citizen petition"). For the same reasons, the claim could not be maintained with APA

jurisdiction because by granting the requested relief, the pattern and practice was no longer

tethered to a specific agency action. Id. at 1228-29. In contrast, in the present case, no relief has

yet been granted regarding the five petitions that Plaintiffs have filed with the FWS.
CONCLUSION

For the reasons explained above, the Court should deny FWS's Motion to Dismiss.
Respectfully submitted,

Dated: April 25, 2005 /s
Robert Ukeiley (MD14062)
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DPISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

THE FOND POR ANIMALS, gr al..

L

Plainciffs, :
v. : Civil Accion No.
1 D1-813 (GK}
GALF WORTON, et al.: ; FlLEb
Pefendanta. : MAR 2 9 2002
) 143
MEMORANDUM QPINTON

Plainciffa c¢hallenge, under the Endangered BSpacies Ast
("B8A%), 16 U.S.C. § 1531 gt _seq., and the Adminiscrative Procedure
Act [“APA"), 5 U,85.C. § 702, the granring of permits by che
Deparement of Interior (*DOI*) and i1ts Fish and Wildlife Service
{"FWS" ar “Service?) co sport hunters for che importacion from
Central Asia of argali sheep “trophies.<?

The matter is now before the Court on ths Moﬁlon te Dismiss of
Defendants, Gale Norton, Secrecary of the Interior, and Marshall P.
-.'fones, Jr., Agting Da.réc:or of the Service. Upon conziderarion of
the Morcion, bpposition, Reply,., the Motions Heaving held in thas
matter on March 20, 2002, and the entire :ecbrd n&re;n, for the
reasons discussed below, the Court denies Defendancs’ Motion,

I. BACKGROUND

! *Trophies” refer to the argali sheep head or other parts of
the body.
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Plaiuviffs arxe several natzonal, nen-profat membarship
organizacions commatted to presgrviag animal and planc species in
their natural habirate and dadicared to halting the hunting of
animal species in da'ng:r of sextincrion.? Defendancs axe OGale
Norten, Secratary of the Incerior, whe has ulcimate responsabrlivy
for implementing the BESA, and Marshall P. Jonss, Actang Director of
che_Fish and Wildlife Service, the agency that has been delegéted
the day-ra-day responsibilary for implementing the ESA. Defendantc
Invervenors are two sport hunting groups: (i) Safari Club
Incernational and Wildlife Conservartion Fund of Awerieca:; and (2)
North Aamarican wild Sheep, Grand Slam Club.

Plaintiffs filed this accion in June 2031 to challeage cthe
Service’'s grant of permita rg Sport huncers who want to imporrc
argali sheep “crophiess from Mengelia, Tajikistan snd Ryrgyzstan.
Plaineiffs alsa challenge the Service's fai1lure to issuve =z finml
rule on its proposal o designate the argali as vendangered” undar
the ESA in these three countries. Before turning to the
particulars of Plaintitfs' Complainc, asme background on the aréali

and the startutory framework of the ESA 1S warranted,

2 Pldincif!s aze The Fund for Animals (*Fund~), che Animal

Legal Derfense Fund, Inc. (“ALDPF~). and the Earth Island Instirpute
(*che Inscicure~). Plainriffs alse include the Argaly wWildlife
Resourece Center ("Canter”’}, which iz a non-governmentcal

organization in Mongolia dedicaced to wildlzfe management., and
several scientists in Mongolia and the Uniced Scares scudyang che
argali sheap, namely Sukh Amgalanbaacar (Mengolian sciencist),
Zundui Namshir {Mongolian scizncise), and Ron Nowak (Varginia
ecientisc).




A. Argali Sheep
The aygali sheep 18 an Asian relative of the North American
bighcrn zheep, and is the largest. species af wild sheep in the
world, weighang berween 210-310 pounds, with apiral horns that ean
grow T& 75 inches in langeh and 20 inches in circumierence.

The hastorac ryange of the " argali snclude Kazakharan,
Kyrgyzatan, Tajikistan, Uzbekistan, southern Siberia, Mongolia,
norch-central and westérn China (including Tiber), Napal, ang che
Himalayan porrtione of Afghanistan, Pakistan. and India. 57 Ped.
Reg. 25,014 {1992) .

The argala generally forages in broad valleys, high pasturess,
vz ¢cold desercs, and may s2ek refuge in adjacent mountains. In
recent years, the arsali‘'s habitat has been significancly
encxyoached on by domestie sheep and other 11vas:éck. The argali
has also been subject to extens:ve habitat desrtruction, poachihg,
and poarly econtxrolled sport hunting. 57 Fed. Reg. 28018-22 (1982).

A. Endangecred Speciea Act! ‘

The BSA requires the Secretary of the Interior to dstermipe

whether a species i sither "endangered” or “chreatened”* and seva

IThe ESA was enacted primarily vo "provide a means whereby che
ecosystems  upon which endangered species and threacened species
depend may be conserved [and]l to  provide &z program foxr che
conservation of such endangered species and threatensd gpeclLez.”
16 U.5.C. § 1831{b). .

*“An endangsred species” 1s defined as “any species which is
in danger of excinction throughour all or a significant portion of
its range...(.]” 16 U.S.C. § 1532(6). A “threatened sp&cies” 18
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forch rule-makxné Procedures f£or cthat purposé. 16 U.3.0. § 1533.
Since 1982, the argali sheep has besn classifred as rendangered”
everywhere ic i3 found., except in Mongolia, Tajikisctan, and
Kyrgyzstan, wnere it is desigrnacred as “threateped.”

The ESA treacs the imporecarion of "=nﬁangered“ and
"cthreatened” species differencly. The Act exprassly prohipita the
import of “endangerad” species, 15 U.S.C. § 1838(a), but authorizes
a llmi:eé exception. A peraon sesking to import an endangered
species may do so omly "(A} for scientific purpeses or To enhance
the propagarion or survival of the affected species...[.]” or v (8)
incidental to, and not [for] the burpose of, the carrying out of an
otherwise lawful activaiey.” 18 U.5.¢Q. § 1839({a) (1) (A}, (B). An
applicant must apply for a perinict, and satisfy specific criceria.
16 U.S.C. § 1539(a; (2} (A), {(B). |

'By CoNCrast, the ESA containa no express prohibicion cn the
irportataen of "threatened” species., It does, however, contazn a
provigion that requires the Secrecary to ensure that all
regulatrions izsued concerning "threaiened* species are issued for

“the conservaction of such speciesa”’; the ESA also allows rthe
1

defined as "any species whach i1a lakely co become an ehdangered
apecies within the foreseesable furure throughout all or a
significant portion of 1tg range. 16 U.S5.C. § 1532120).

*vCongervation” is defined £o mean “the use of all methoda and
procedures which axe necessary o pring any endangered species or
threatened species to cthe point at which the meaaures provided
Pursu4nt o thas Cnaprer are ne longar necsssary. Such mechods and
procedures include...all activivies associazed with sciencifie
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secxrerary to afford threatened specles ‘the same proteccions
afforded to endangsrad species ragardang, inLer alia, smpprrs. 16
U.§.C. § 1533(d). Specifzcally, the ESA provides that:
d) Protegrive regulations
Whenever any species 1% liated as a threatanad speciss
pursuanc te subsectlon {¢! % this section, The Secrecaxy
alhall 1ssue such regulations as ne dsems nece¥sary and
advisable to provide for the conservataon af such
‘species, The Secrecary may by regulation prchabit with
respect to any threatensd spec:ies any act prohibiced
under secgtaon  1538({(a) {17 of rthis «=tictle [i.®..

~prchibiced Acea” including imports], in the cass of £isn
or wildlafe...

16 U.8.C, 1533(d).

Conaistent with this authority, the Secrecary has isausd
regulations providing threatened species some of the same
protections afforded endangerad species.'so C.F.R. § 17.31(a). For
example, BSA regulations pzohabit the amporcacion of botn
threaconad and endangered species, unless certain permic crivaria
apply. 50 C.P.R. § 17.22(b); 50 C.F.R. § 17.31(a)."d

The parrticgular permir critexia for endangered and threacened

IESources mManagemeant such as research, cansus, law enforcament,
nabicart acquisicion and maintenance, propagacion, live
trapping...and in the extraordinary case where population pressures
Wwithin & given ecogystem cannot he otherwise relleved, may aneluds
regulated taking.” 16 U.S.C. § 1532 {3} .

L]

specifically, 50 C.F.R, § 17.21(bJ provides that "It 1=
unlawful tTo impert or to export any endangered wildlife.~ Seccion
17.31(a) makes this prohibizion applicable to threarened species;
»..,all of the provisions in 17.21 shall apply ro threaranad
wildlife.” 50 C.F.R. 17.3x(a).




‘species, however, are d:ffersnt from one anocher and arg ser forth
in separate regulations. The permit coriveria for endangered
apecles are set forth in 5¢ C.F.R. § 17.22. The permir craceria
for chreavened species are ser forrh ac 50 C.FP.R. § 17.32.
1. Secrtien 17.32

Secraion 17.32, :hé Tegulation governing threarensd species,
provides chat while the imporracion of threarsned wildlife is
generally prohibired, a persen may apply for a permic o impore
guch wildlife for certain limiced purposes as long as the lisred
criteria.are mec.’” 50 C,P.R. § 17.32. The regularvions also
provide that if the Sacrectary has issucd a "Special Rule-
applicable o a particular threazened species, the issuance of
permits for chat species .s governed by che spscial Rule,®* 350

C.F.R., 8§ 17.31«(e), 17.32.

' Section § 17.32(a) provides thar permics 1ssuad under thas
secrion “"must be for one of the following purposes: Scienrific
Puxposes, Or theé enhancemant -of ProOpagation or survival, or
economic -hardship, or zcological exhibiticn, or educaticnal
purposes, or rncidental taking, or special purposes consiscent with
the purposes of che Aat.~

Seqtion § 17.32 also sets forth certain criteria that must be
satisfied by the applicant bafore isauance of a permir. %0 C.P.R.
§ 17.32(a) 12) (i-vi).

*Seguion 17.31(c) provides chat: "Whenever a special rule in
§8 17.40 to 17.48 applies to a threatened species, none of the
provisions of paragraphs (a} and {b) of thas section will apply.
The special rula will concain all the applicable prohibaitions and
exceptions.~

S8ecrion 17.32 provides thac: "Such permit s3hail be governed by
the provagions of this section unless o special rule applicable to
the wildiife, appearing in § 17.40 to 17.48, of chis part provides
otherwiae.* ,
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2., Spaclal Rule

The Secretary has issued a Special Rule governing issuance af
import peymits for the argal:i, which 1s sec forth at 50 C.F.R. §
17.406{3j). The Special Rule provides that in order to obrain an
import pexrmit for the argali, an applicant has two options. She
ecan glther saciafy vthe permit reéuiremen:s applicable to chreatened
species provided in § 17.32. 50 C.F.R. § 17.40(]) {1) .? oOr, an the
alrernatave, 31f rche countries from which argali crophies ars
imported provide cercain_ ncertificarion* and documencataon
regarding the argali populacions in their eouncry, *the Director
may, consiscent wifh the ACt, autherize...the 1mpdrtac1cn of
personal sﬁorn-nunted afgali trophies, raken legally in Kyrgyzstan,
Mongolia, and Tajikistan...withour a Threatened Specises permit

pursuant to 17.32.* 50 C.F,R. § 17.40143) (2) .

! gecrion 17.40(3){1) of the Special Rule provides: “Except &8
noted in parageaph (j) (2)...all prohibitions of § 17.31 of this
part and exemptions of § 17.32 of this part shall apply to this
species ain Kyrgyzstan, Mongelia, and Tajikastan. (Note--In all
orher parts of its range the argali is ¢lassified as endangered and
covered by § 17.21) .7

Wgeorion 17.40(3) (2) of the 3pecial Rule providea:

Upon receiving £rom rthe governments of Kyrgyzstan,
Mongolia, and fTajakistan properly documented and
verifiashle cercification that (a) avgala populations in
those countries are aufficiencly lazge Co sustaln sSpocv
hunting, (b} regulating authorities have che capaeity to
chrain sound data on these populations, (o) regulating
authoricies racognize thease popularions =5 3 valuuble
vesource and have rhe legal and pracrical capacity To
manage them as such, (d) ths habitat of chese populations
1% secure, {(e) regulating aucthorities can easures that the
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¢. Plainciffs’ Ceomplaint

Plainciffs’ Complainc sraces five counts. Plainviffg: farst
claim (*Pairliure vo Iasuas a Fina:l Rule”) is that Defandants violated
the ESA by not issuing a final decisicn within one year as rsquired
by the ESA on its proposal to change the srvatus of tha argaii in
chosa regions: where it 12 class:ified as “rchreatened” to
“endangeraed.” 15 U.£.C., § 1633(b) (&), Specifiecally, in 13893, the
Service 1ssued a proposed rule to change the aigali's lisring £rom
chrearensd o endangared in Mongelia, Tajikistan and Kyrgyzstan.
To date, the 8ervice has not isswed a final rule on the proposed
change of liating.

Plainciffa’ second, third and fourch claims, are all variancs
cf the same eclaim, and charge thar Defendanrs® issuance of certain
imporcasion permits for che avgali sheep violaces the ESA, the

threatened species permit rules {i.e., % 17.32) and che Special

involved crophies have in fact bheen lagally taken from
the specified populations, and (f) funds derived Irem the
Anvelved spoxr hunting are applied pramarily te argal:
conesrvarion, the Dirscror may, oonsistent wirth the
purposes of the Act, auchorize by publication of a notice
in the Federal Regisrer the imporration of personal
sport -hunted argali wrophies, caksn legally  1n
Kyrgyzstan, Mongelia, &ad Tajikiavan afrer the date of
such notige, without a Thraatened Species permic pursuant
to § 17.32 of chis part, provided chat the applizable
provisions of 50 CPR paxc 23 nave béeen mac,

B




Rulae {z.&,., 5 17.40{3)).%F

Flainriffs’ £ifch claim ("notice and somment") charges thac
1ssuance of importation permits for the argali sheep. without
affording any oppertunity for public notice and comment btefore they
azre issued, and wichout making certain necezsary *findings."”
vialares the norace provisiens in the ESR, 15 U.S.C. § 1539(c). (d}),
and 18 “arbitrary and capricisus” in vialation cf the APA.
IT. STANDARD CF REVIEW

Defendants have mcved ro dismiss che Complainc for lack of
subject mattey jurisdiction under Fed. R. Civ. P. 12(p) (}} and fox
failure Co sctate & claim under Fed. R. Cav. P. 12(b) (6},

The legal srandards for considerang motions co diamiss under
Fed. R. Civ. B. 12(b) (1) and Rule 12(b){6) are differenc. A &ourc
has subject marter jurisdicrien as long as the welaim arises under
che laws of the Uniced Staces’ and *[ulnless cthe alleged claim
clearly appears to be immaterial and made solely fér the purpose of
obcaining. juriadic'txcn, or {1a] wholly insubstantial and
frivolous. - on_ v, rars, 43 F.3d 1485, 1230 (D.C. Ciz.

1995] ({incernal guocation and citations omizeed) . A €courc may

Nplainriffs’ second claim ("Permics”) charges thuc the Sezvace
has issuad ovay 100 permics that viclate the APA, ESA, and
implemenraing regulaclons. Plainciffa’ chard claim ("specific
permics~) is a challenge ro faive specific permits chat were 1ssued
ta sevaral named individuals. Plainriffs’ Efourch claim (“permit
policy*) charges that Defendante’ pattern, prastice apd policy of
issuing Amporcation permics foy argal: sheep violaces cthe AFA,
2gA, and its implementing regulations. .
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dismiza foxr lack of subject marcer Jurisdiction only where su;h
claams are “snsubstancvial on theixr face.® Hagang v, lavine, 415
U.8. 528, 542 n. 10 (1874) {internal cications and gQuorstions
omivted). ‘

Under R. 12(b} {6}, "[A] complainc should nor be dlsmissed for
failure to srate. a claim unlass it appears beyend doubr tﬁaz che
- plainviff can prove no setr of facts an suppoxt of his eclaim which
would enricle him to reiief." Copley y. Gibsoa, 355 U.5. 41, 45-26
{(1857) .

ITT. ANALYSIS

Defendancta meve to dismisa Counts 2-5 of Plainciffs’ five-
count Complainc 5n rhe ground that Plaintiffs have failsed to allege
a final agency aaclon as reguired under the APA. - Defendants
maintain chat the Qourr therefore has no subjeer macrer
Juriasdicticon to heay thess claims.

Pluintiffs respond that their claims are reviewable because
(1} chey arise under the ESA and that, in any event, {2) Plaintiffa
have alleged “final agency” actiona which are reviewable under the
APA., The Court addresses these argumencs below. .

A. Plaintiffs’ Cleimp MArisse Under the ESA

Plaintiffs axrgue thatr cthe ESA's ¢itizen suat provision
authorizes judicial review of their ¢laims. The relavanr portion
of the citizen suit provision provides:

Except as pravidsed in paragraph (2) of thias subsection
any person may commencs & civil suit on his own behalf-
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{C) against the Secretary wherse there is alleged a
failure of the Secrerary To perform any act or duty under
Fsctien 1533 of thas title which is not discreclionary

wich che Secretary. The districc courts =nall have

jurisdictionr, wirhout regard to the amount in concroversy

or cthe cirizaeasnip of the parciea, ro enforee any such

provision or regulacion, or to arder the Secretary ©to

perform such agt or duty. 4% the case may be,
16 U.S.C. § 1540(g) {}) {C}.

A= the citizen suit provision makes clear, the Secrerary may
be zued for *failure to perform' a “nen-discrevionary’ dury ™under
secrion 1533" of the ESA. The provizion instruscs the Court to
examins both the plain language of section 1533, as well as the
izplementing regulations fer any non-diseretionary dutiez: "The

distriet courts shall have jurisdicoion. wirthour regaxd ro cthe

AMOUNET 1T controversy or the gitizenship of the pafcmes, o enfores
anv _ such _provision Qar requlanion . © .16 U,8.8. §

1540 (g} (1) (C) (emphasis addad) .

V Plaintiffs mainta:n chat their cla:m is reviewable undexr §
1540 {g) (1) (C) because the Secrestary has falled rco perform non-
dissrarionary duties confsined in  section -1533(d! =and che
implamencing regulacions, namély 50 C.F.R. § 17.32 and § 17.40.

Defendancs contend that judicial yveviaw is notv available under
che ESA for two yeasong. First, they maintain that the dutias an
these regulations azre “discreticnary” and thersfors not subjsct to
challenge. Second, they argus thar there has besn no “faeailure To

perform* within the meaning of § 1340(g) (1) (C). becauss “the

1




issuance of argali permits 15 an &¢r, not a failure to acc.” ges
Def.’ Reply at 6. The Courc rejecca both these contencions.
1. Plaintiffs Allege Non-Discretionary Puties
Section 1533 (d) provides that:

wWhenever any species is listed as a thysarened species
pPursuant to subsectien (¢) of this sscrion, the Secrstary
shall issue such regqularions as he deems necessary and
advisable cto provide £or the conservation of such
species., The Secrdtary may by yegulation prohibit wich
reapect to any threatened speciess any act prohibiced
undar secrion 1538{a) (1) of this civle, in the case of
fish or wildlife.., with reéapect to endangered species;

This section requires the Secrecary to issue regulations he déems
“necesaary and advisable” “for the conserzvation of” threacened
Rpecles. Pursuant to thys mandare, vhe Secratary has issued
secrions 17.32 and 17.40, which, as explained above, govern pefm;:s
for threatened species generally (58 17.32) and rhe argali, in
parvicalar (& 17.40).

Dafendants argue that cthese regﬁlanicns ser forth only
“discretidnary dutzeg.~ Secraon 17.32, provides in relavant parc:

Upon receipt of a completa application the Director may
igsue a permit fOor any acrcivity otherwise prohibired waith
regard to threatened wildlife., Such permit shall be
governed py the provisions of cthis seczion unless a
spacial rule applicable tc the wildlife, appearing in §
17.40 o 17.48, «f chis part provides otherwise. Permits
igsgued under cthis sgection must be for osne of the
following jpurposes: Scientific parposes, ox che
enhancement of propagation or sSurvival, oY eseonomic
hardship, oxr zoologacal sexnibicion, oy educaticnal
purpoaes, or incidental ctaking, or special purposes
conslgtent with the purposes of the Acr,

Defendants point to the fivst sentencea in § 17.32: “Upon receipt of
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a complete application, the Director may 1$sue a permit for é.ny
accivicy stherwise prohibitad with regard to threatensd wildlife."
Defendants poinc To similar language in § 17.40 "' Based on tms
language, Defendarnts argue that the ultimate decision of whether o
issue a permit is “discrstionaxy” and tnar therefore Pla:nciffs
cannot rely on the citizen 3ull provisian to challenge iasuance of
the permits.

The ssecond sentenga of § 17.32, howevax, makes clear chat
chere 1s a non-discvetionsry duty to deny permits unless cercasn

criteria are satisfied: “Such permit shall ba governad by the

provisicns of this sestion. . permits iasued under this secTlOon MWL
pa Loy one of the following purposes: Scientific purposes, or the

enhancement of propagarion ox survaval, or sconomic hardsanip, or

zoclogical exhibirion, oF educational purpases, oOF incidencal

caking, or spesial purp'oses consistent with the purposes of tne

Acrc.* Sp C.F.R. & 17.32 {emphasis adgdedy. szerion 17.40(])

contains analogous mandatory lanquage requiring sacisfaction of -
cercain criteria before the i1ssuance of a permic. Zegq 50 C.F.R. §

l'7.40£]) (2) .‘

Thus, the language of Chese ragularions provides rhat the

3 Upon receiving £vom tha governmerte of Kyrgyzstan, Monaolia,
and Tadikistan properly documented and verifiable certcificacicn
vhat [(six criceria are Yigred]* “the Director may, ceneiscent with

the purposes of the Act, authorsze. . . che importation of pexrsonal
sporc-hunted argalil trophiea. . .without a Threarengd Specaes pexmikt
pursuant t£o 17.32... g1 . ;
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Secretary is certainly fras Lo deny any permit she chooses, even if
an applicant satisfies the regulacory requirements: hawaver, she
has no discrecion whacgoaver to grant a permat if che ryegulatory
criraria are psr met (l.g,, “"Director may issua a permit,..Such
permits ghall be goveraed by []...and guss be for one of th
following purposes,..f{.17}. o other worda, the Searetary has &z
non-dizcrevionary duty vo ensure that rhe agency's lasced
regularory criveria are mec before issuing a permic.

Indead, the Supreme Court has made clear chat even where the
VSecrecery has £inal discrerion as to a par:icuiar dscigion, she has
no discrervion to ignore specific decision-making requiremants cr
eriteria in arriving at chet decision. In Banperr v, Spear, 520

U.3. 154, 172 (1997), the Supreme Court concluded thar a Bislogieal

Opinion was reviewable under § 1540 (g) {1) {C)) because it implacitly.

determined orainical habitat without “raking inco censideration the
gconomic 1mpﬁct, and any other relevant impact.” as spacified in §
15833 (b) {(2). The Supreme Courc found that even though the act of
deaignaring cxitical habitar is discrecionary, the Secretary had no
discrerion o ignore 3pecific srtatutory decision-making crireria;
"1t is éudxmentary administraclve law chat discretion as to the
substance of cthe alrimace decision does not confer discretion to
tgnore the required procedures of decisionmaking.” Bspmert, 520
U.8. at 172 l(ipternal citatvions and quotations omitted).

Samilarly, Plaintiffs here have allaged cthact Defsadants &re
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granting permite without complying with the mandatory eyriceria sec
forth in the permit regulacions, They have therefore identified
non-discretionary duries veviawaple under § 1540(g) (1) (C).

2. plaintiffs Allege a "Failurs to pecform”

Pefendancs also aArgue That even iT Plainciffa can point to 3
hon-discracion&ry duty, vthey have not alieged a *failure TO
perform®  within the meaning of § 1540(g) (3} 1{C) because “cthe
igsusnces of argal: permicts is an act, not a failure to agt,.? Jes
Def.’ Reply ac &.

As in Benpett, whers the alleged failure to perform wWaa the
geecrecary's failure cake into account cercaln considerariens (1.e..
economic impact) bafore designacing ericical habitar, the failure
to bertafm alleged in this case is khe sSscretary's failure to
following the mandatory criteria aet forth in § 17.32 and § 17.40
when issuing permits. Accordingly, the Court concludes that
Plainciffs Thave alleged a +failure €O perform” undex §
1240 {g) (1) {Q) .

In aummary, giver that Plainciffs allege thac tThe Secretary
has failed to perform hexr non-discrecionary duty to comply with che
mandarory permat eriteria of § 17.32 and/or § 17.30 when issuing
permiva for the mporTaticon ot argali rrophies, the Courrc concludes
that Plaiaciffs’ claims are reviewable undey § 1540 (g) (1} () af the
BSA.

B. Plaintiffa’ Claims Are raviewable Under the AFA
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Even if these claams WwWeze not Yyeviewable undexr §
1540 (g) {3} (Q), the Courrt weuld scill have subject matrer
jurisdicrion under the APA because Plaintiffs have challenged the
Service's ~final agency action.”' S U.8.C. § 704, -

Tq b= reviewable under the APA, there must be a "parcicular
‘agency actiont that causes [] harm.” Lujap v i i '1fe
Fedevapion, 497 U.S. 871, 881 {1850). Furchermore, such actlon
must he “"Ffinal,” i.e , v“the consummation of the agency’'s
decisionmaking process” and "ené by which rights or obligations
have bezen determined, or from which legal consequences will flow.”
Bepnerr, 520 U.S. at 178 (internal citations and quétat;ons
omitced) -

1. Plninﬁiffl Have Ydentified Final Agency Actien

Plainviffs have sufficiently identified in cheir chpléinc
~£inal ageancy accion” which 1s being challenged. They have named
five individual permitse thar have been granted in dlrec:.violacion
of the permit regulations. Plainvaffs alsc allege cthat <the
Sacretary has igsued over 160 other permits for the imporcation of

argali that are in direct viclation of cthe peymit regulaciens,*

2 Whila the Court s aware that it nead not reach the guestion
of wherher flaintiffs’ claims arise under the APA, Bince it has
derermined chart they arise under che ESA, it may well ke helpful,

in the leng wun, to address jurisd:crtional gquestions under both
SCaLnirtes.

“The fact that Plainciffs have nor identified the 100 orher
permiteas by name is of no consequence. This 18 a mocion to
dismigs, and Plaintiffs nsed noc plead ac this preliminary stage
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Each one of theas za & fanal agency actlcn hezause it marks the
sconsupmation cf che [Service’s] dscisilon-making preocesst with
respect te each permit applicacion. The 3Jervice has ot
maintained, for sxample, that there 15 any Furcher act;bn To be
takean @131 these permitvs. Ses alse San Juap Audubon Sogiety .
Yopeman, 153 F. Supp. id 1 (B.DTC.rollteach placamsnt Dy the
Departuent of Agriculture of M-44% sodium cyanide ejectors in
vielaciorn of Environmental BProtection Agency YestylCTions was
reviewable agency accion under the APA).

plainciffs mise allege that Pefandancs’ vpolicy and practicer
of granting argsli 21MpOrt permits in vwalation of the permit
regulations iz reviewable agency actien., Indeed, courts recognize
that pclicy, patcern and praccice cla:ma may be reviewable under
the APA. Shell Offanore v, DeD. T pf Interior, 997 F. Supp. 23, 27
(O.D.C. 1958) (“wWhen a party seeks to challenge an agsncy peolacy o
practice by which they a¥e advarsely affecred cr aggrieved in cthe

courts, THAT party may sSeek judicial review under section 10 {a) of

che APA.“) vacated gn gther arounds. Shell Offghoxe, Ing, w. U.S.
Depr. of Ingerior, No. 98-5117, 2001 WL 238149 (R.C. Cir. Feb 26,
2001); Independent pecyolaum ASSOCLALADN of Agexios v, Rzbhirce, Qﬂi
F. Supp. 192. 27 (D.D.&, 1997} {same) ., Wners, as hexre, an agency

ig engaged in a practics of repeatedly makina the sams parciculaz

agency Jecision, that practice 1S unquescionably subject t&

all that chey way evencually need to prave.
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Jjudacial review., Payne Enterpr:ges v.. United Snates, 837 F.2d 486
(D.€. <Cir, 1988) (“impermissible practice® of avaluating FOIa
requests subject to judicial revaew): ipiae : .1C
Scate, 276 F.3d4 8§34 (D.C. Cir. 2002) (challenge Tto pPeparcmanc of
Scéte'a application of'dar.e-of.—raque'sc cuc-off policy to FOIA
requests was ripe for review): of. Ygpeman, 153 F. Supp. 24 at 5-6
{(finding Subj&ct watrter Jjurisdiction over colaims ulleging that
beparcment of Agriculture engaged in rapeated practice of violaring
EPp restrictions in placement of M-44 scdium cyanide ejeccors):
Liddy v._ Caigneros, 823 F. Supp. 164 (S.D.N.¥. 1393) (plainciffs:
claims regarding HUD's alleged pelicy and pracrice of inscructing
segmion 8 owhers te deny transfers rto disabled persons alraady
coCcupying seccién 8 housing are reviewable undar the APA).

Accordingly, the Court finds cthat Plaintiffs have properly
alleged final agency actien in thei¥ Complaant.

2. Plaintiffs’ Claims Are Not Barred By Lujan

Defandencs concend chat Plainciffs’ ¢laims are barred hecause
thay consticute what is essentially a “programmaric challenga®
similar vo that barred in Lyian v, Navional Wildlife Federation,
497 U.8. 871 (1890). As explained below, Plaintiffs are noc
bringing a programmatic challenge, and their case is not barxed by
adan.

in Luian, plainciffs challenged che “land withdrawal revaiey

program* of rhe Bureau of Land Management (*BLM”). The “land
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withdrawal raview progran® was the tarm selected by the plainciffs
in that case o describe a panoply of problems within Bim.'* The
Luian Court bheld that because plainciffs had not 1dencrfied any
vfinal agency action” as raquired under the APA, the mattex wWas not
ripe. The Court explained that the “land withdrawal zTeview
program~ irself could not e conmidered a “final agency acTion”
pecauge it was a general 1abel sweeping inko its purview conduct
and practices as broad and rulci-faceted as rthose encompaszed by,
for example, the "wsapons pracurement program® of the Department of
Defenge and the "drug intardictisn program" of the Drug Enforcement:
Agency. Luian, 487 U.S8. at 8¢, -

Importancly, iwjan did not eygct A bay to all claims seeking
changes in én ageacy’ s program- The Courr made clear tThat as long
am plaintiffs identified a “particular agency action,” thare was nc
par to review, even i1f judicial "inrervantion may ultamacaly have

rhe effect of requiring a regulacion, a series of regulationa. Or
.even a whole ‘program’ to be revised by the ageéncy an ovder to
avoid the unlawful result that the court discerns.” 4. ac 8914,
The Court identified severél reasons why plaintiffs in Lgigl_u, had

failed to $dentify parcicular agency actions. Xene «f chese

s The Supreme Courr identified these problems as rhe:

wfarlure To rmviae land use plans in propayr faghion, failure To
submit cervain recommendations to Congress, failure to consider
muiciple use, inordinare focus upon mineral expleiratien, failure
to provide regquired public noctice, and failure to provide adequate
spvironmental 1mpact Statemencs.” LUlan, 297 U.8. at B9Ll.
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factors is presented in the case ar nar.

First, rthe Lujan ACcurt found rthac Plamnciffs had act
1dentified or referred to a “single BLM order or regulatien, or
sven to a c¢ompleted universe of particular BIM orders and
Tegularions.”  Lujan, 457 U.S. ar B850. Heve, Plainciffs are
allsging thar each permit granted by the 3ervice vialares, lpcer
alia, the plain cerms of che pexmi: requlacions, includiné 50
C.F.R. 8§ 17.32 and 50 C.F.R. § 17.40(3}.

Secend, the Lujap Court found ther plainciffs were mouncing
what was essentlally a “generic challenge to all aspects of the
‘land w;thdréwal revieaw program.'’” Lujan 497 U,8, ar 853, n.2,
The Court scated tnat plasntiffs could net seek *whelesale
improvemanc” of BLM's land managemant program and its “day-to-day”
operations. Jd. at 890, 899, By contraac, Plaintsz§ heye are
not challenging the “*day-tw-day” cperarions of the Servace's pexrmsr
pregram,  Nor are they mounting a bread, mulrty-faceced chﬁllenge to
the administracion of the entirse imporraclion permit program. Their
challenge is a narraw §nd targeted one: thay =zeek xevamw of che
S8srvice’'s specific diacreta decisions to issye argali permits in
vielarica of the BESA and its cwn permit Tegulations.

Finally, the Courr in Luiap observed that wmuch ef the
complaant in that case deseribed acrions and eonduct by BLM that
had not yet occurred and would not be ryipe until BLM took further

2ctlon: "it may well bpe.._thac those individual actions will nor be
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ripe Eor challengs untii aoms furcher agency actaioh O inaction...*
1d. at B892. In this case, by contrast, Plaintiffa are primarily
challenging canduct that has already occmred {i.e., the grantiag
of over 100 permits}. No further actien will ba taken on these
paxmics.

In summary, given that plainciffs nave alleged final agency
acrion, and given that Flaintiffss allegations fall squarely wichin
the paramecers of reviswabls actions established by Luian, the
Courc rejects Defendanca' argument chat Plaipciffs' complaiat iz 2
non-reviewable programmatlc challenge. Plaintifﬁs' claims are
rherefore reviewable under the APA.

©. RBxpiraticn of Permiré Does Not par Plaintiffs’ Claims

pefendancs move to dismiss Plaintiffs’ Claim Threa, which is
a challenge to the five named permits, for failure to stare 2
claim, or, altermatively, because 1L 15 meoT.

Pefendants argue Chat the five namad permits wers not “valad
or open” at the time plaintiffs filed their -action because the
permiteas had already used them co kill and imporc argal:y from
abroad. See March 20, 2002 Moticons Hearing Transcript (“Moticns
Hearing Tr.”) ("at tha time that they filed their complaint, those
pEYXYMITS Were noT sven open or valid anymare.”). The Court rejects
cthis conptention for several reasons.

First, Plaintiffs maintain thac, regardiess of when the argal:

trophies wers acrually imperted, the permits nad not expired on
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their £ace Ar the time this accion was filed. Plaintiffs filed in
June of 2001, and consend thar the permits expired in Octoaber of
2001. Furcthermore, according to El&inciffs, all five paimitees nagd
failed to submit follow-up reporcs afvery importing argali trophies, .
as required by the permit. Plaintiffs maintain this failure &1so
renders the permits open to ¢hallange. Sgs Pls.¢ Opp'n at 17-15.

As rthis marter 15 hefore the Court on a motion o dismias, all
of Plaintiffa’ facrns must be accepred as rrue far purposes of such
mecion., Defendants’' rheory of dismissal raises factual Sispures
regarding expiration of the permits, which are not appropriace for

consideratibn at thig preliminary stage of the procesdings.

Second, with respest To mMOOCness, this controversy 18 che

paradigmaktic “capable of reparition yer evading review™ exception.

See, 2.9 . Eriehds of the Tarch Ige, v laidlaw, 528 U.S, 167, 170
(2000) . Indeed, the remasindeyr of Plaintiffs: claims raisze

challenges to over a hundred permits which are idencical te chelr
challenges te cthe [ive named permics ac issue in Claim Three.
?ur:harmcre, the Servige plans ﬁo continue issuing argali permica,
many of which, according te Plainriffs, may =uffer from che
deficiencies alleged to exist an the five named permacs.

Finally, Defendants' cheory of dismisgal, if accep;ed, would
likely fozxeclegse judiecial reviaw to aay plajaciff seaklné TO
challenge an argali permit. DPefendsncs‘ cheory is that ne permit

can be dhallengad before 1t 1s actually :ssued or after an argall
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nropﬁy is imporred. Therefore, in ordar for this Courr ©o hear a
claim, & piainuiff musc file hex acrion during Che RAYraw wandow of

ime berwesn the day the permit i3 1ssued and the day an argal:
trephy is imported. Ocherwise. her claim is eithey Too early orx
coo lare.

It 18 unclear how a plaintiff could ever navigate hatween this
scylla and Charybdis. Thig 1% especially ctrue given that chere is
no public netice AT comment period whils permit applicacions are
pending o¥ after permits have beeln granted: merecver, it 18 unﬁncwn
how much time a permstes has after receiving a permit ta k11l and
import an argali. 8632 March 20, 2002 Morions Hearing Tranaoxipt
(*Motiong Hearing Tr.“) Aar 21-25.

Nevertheleas, Defendancse argue thar judicial review would noc
pe foreclosed under 1ts thaory begecause a plaincaff Qlahing To

challenge arxgauli permits could aubmit a Freadem of Information

Actien (“FOIA"}, & U.8.C. § 852 g5 geg., Feguest aeeking
informarion on aczzve.permics.-fUnder FQIA, it is argued, such

jnformarion would h#ve te be disclosed within twenty days, and
Plainciffs gould chen presumakly rush ce couxt afrer timely receipt
ot such FOIA disclosures and challenge any active permic hefoge an
argali was killed and imported on that permit. Seg Motions Hearindg
Tr. 22-23. '

From a practical svandpeine, it 15 well-known that FOIA taming

ragquirements are impessibly stricc. tndeed, the Court iz unawaxyea
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of any inscance in which the twenty day disclosure requirement has
baen observed. More imporvantly, the availabilicy of judieral
re&viaw for an otherwise raviswable Ffipal agency action saimply
.cannet depend upon the vagaries of agency compliance with FOIA's
timecaples. -

Accordingly, the Courtk finds rhar Plaintiffs have stared =z
claim with regpect to the five named permits and that chis claim as
net woor. Defendants’ motion is therefors denied a3 TO Plainritfs:
Claim Three,

IV, CONCLUSION
Por all the foregoing reasoms, rhs Couzt denies Pefendancs:

Motion to Dismiss. An Order will accompany this Opinion.

[Leil 22 700 %ML |
DATE GLADYS KES3LER

UNITED BTATES DISTRICT JUDGE
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64475 (1996); Def’s Opp. 11 6:13-14. The LPG goided the FWS on how to elear » backlog that kad
asveloped during s peciod of congreasional cutbecls aod budgetacy withlzdings. When the ambrosia
petition was seceived, the FWS faoed p desiting task, nemely catching 1p on the long Jist of pending
potitions, (Def’s Opp. &t 420-22). In Jauary 1997, nzrwsmmmchwsm“mng
fortcnonﬁmmmthmlmym m@mm@ymﬂwmﬁhnﬂwm Id

mwsamwmm”mmmmamwmmmm

incoming patters. The LPG exmblished 2 “multi-tiered appevech that assigofed] relotive pricsitics,

on & desceiuking basis, to actines carried eut under Section 4 of the Act... LPG for Fiscal Year 1997,

61 Fed Reg 64475, 64479 (1996), The LPG called for giving higheat priogity (Tier 1) 10 emergensy

siuasions, second priosity (Tier ) to rasolving the Hsting ststus of the cutstanding proposed listings,
mwﬁqwmz)un&mnmﬁmmammgdm
admivistrative findings on petitinas, end lowsst prioeisy (Ter 4) to preparation of proposed or final,
critical hatitat dcsigantions and proccssing delistings and reclissifications. from cudamgered to
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10 In May iw:,-mmsummdxmwu'pnmm. Sex Final LPG for Fiscal Years
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17 mmm&muemmmmmwmmuwmmmﬁsw
18 amhmymanmmgmupmmm&suammm- (Det's Opp. ot 7:27-8:2),
1§ ' ,
0] wmwmmmxﬁn,&hmmum'cuﬁmmmmww
21§ R mats revisw of the smbrogls (De. Opp. a1 8:6-7). Defeadamts claitm that tho Carished office wil
m@mmw'wm@ﬁw«mmmmwmm
additionsl 12 weoks. %ﬂwmmwﬁhwmmth&pﬂﬁﬁmﬁnﬁw
fwzhcmnbtoﬁamjmmyis.zooo. ‘ o= r

- _ IL STANDARD OF REVIEW .

4 Smlﬁmhimﬂmdwummm%kmmm
mhywmm...hmhgm is emtitled 10 judgmect e & matter of law™ FED, R, Cy.
P. 56(c); Sre.alm Colotex v Cavesy, 477 U.S. 317 (1983), Ths “mere oxistence of some alleged

.iooaqmu.&.u‘p..

NYRNYNN

QRS- s név-xmm

Appe]lﬁnts‘ Excerpts of Record
: Page 12




NOV-1.1-99 THU 04:39 PH© THLAW FAX:3038716 FAGE 17

11-11-1999 12:1SPM meszgmsam
© qerzesed 12113 FAL 6195373004 USAO CIV!L DTV \goo7
—— .

factual &mm&emﬂmﬁdeMWMﬂh
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st ol R
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o =% 2

lSUSCﬁlﬁ:{b}(S){A)(mpkmM mmmdmwhmum
finiing, is Sukject to cansideranon of “practicability.” Scw Blofiversity Leeal Foundaton y, BAbUtL
146 F.3d 1249 (106 Cir. 1998); mmwofummwdzmmwﬁm
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17 | Scope of Revicw of Agency Statutory | o : , .
il Um«mmm:umqmwcfﬁzmum'mw '
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20 § NRDC, 467 V.S, 837 (1984Y; kce also mm% 398 F.2d
211 1410, 1414 (9th Cir. 1990) [“Anm'swnmﬁoanﬁthwsitﬁnﬁnimismﬁed.»
22| considerable whight ")(ciing Chevron. Mdﬁtdzﬁmk&nﬂdwmasmqhmbk
23 | interpretations of an cvsbferous statuts, fthe intext af Congress i clomr and the plain meaing of the
24 mﬁmmmmmmd&bww In Chevron, the Suprerte
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27
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mﬂm ™wp ions First, ﬁmy:,.k the, question whether Congresshay” - directly
spoken to the precise question st issuc, If the rent Congress it clewr, that iz the end of the
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intent of Congress. ™ : 1
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10} substantial sedfiation Smwewmmm;ﬁmmymmmdthcso
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16 m&:mnm:ommm&mmww“mw
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19 Ume requirements existent i the statute 25 2 whols, Axd, finally, it omtravenes the clear rtent of
20 Com&m.mcdng.thaESA. . : .
21} 1. Pl Meaning : :
' g ' Rosmreeas Zoun; Rantar (ONRC), 59
23 ] F.3d 334 (9th Cir. l%'Mth&BAummdﬂdﬁnuﬁrmnmdwﬂy
243 be more clear™ ONRC 2t 333-39, mnm::q:hdﬁydmﬁabuwmwdudhmﬁ&
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26
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